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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning.

          3  Welcome all to the Committee on Rules, Privilege and

          4  Elections. My name is Leroy Comrie; I Chair the

          5  Committee. I'll introduce the members that are in

          6  the room. Starting, sitting in the back is

          7  Councilman Hiram Monserrate, Council Member

          8  Christine Quinn is going out the door. Council

          9  Member Maria Baez from the Bronx and Council Member

         10  Madeline Provenzano from the Bronx.

         11                 Before us today, we have two mayoral

         12  candidates for appointment. They are Lisa Ann Gomez,

         13  a Brooklyn resident who is candidate for appointment

         14  to the City Planning Commission. She will replace

         15  Alexander Garbin (phonetic) and serve the remainder

         16  of a five- year term that expires on June 30, 2009.

         17  And Emily Suzanne Heinze, a Manhattan resident who

         18  is candidate for appointment to the Environmental

         19  Control Board. She will fill a vacant position for a

         20  member with knowledge of Noise Pollution Control and

         21  serve for the remainder of a four- year term that

         22  will expire on March 5, 2007. We're going to start

         23  with Ms. Gomez for the obvious reasons. Before

         24  you're sworn in by the Council, I'd just like to

         25  give the Committee some background for information

                                                            4

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  pertaining to the City Planning Commission.

          3                 The City Planning Commission consists

          4  of 13 members, seven appointments are made by the

          5  Mayor including the Chair; one by the Public

          6  Advocate, and one by each Borough President. All

          7  members except the Chair are subject to the advice

          8  and consent of the Council. Members are to be chosen

          9  for their independence, integrity, and civic

         10  commitment. Commission members serve a stagger five-

         11  year terms except for the Chair who as Director of

         12  the Department of City Planning serves at the

         13  pleasure of the Mayor. I told you he was waiting for

         14  the mic to go on. Commission members are prohibited

         15  from holding any other City office while they serve

         16  on the Commission. The Chair receives an annual

         17  salary of $162,800 yearly. The member who is

         18  designated by the Mayor to be Vice Chair receives an

         19  annual salary of $51,900. The other members receive

         20  an annual salary of $45,131.

         21                 The Commission is responsible for

         22  undertaking long- range planning for the City's

         23  orderly growth, improvement and future development

         24  including appropriate resources for housing,

         25  business, industry, recreation, and cultural;
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          2  assisting the Mayor and other officials in

          3  developing the ten- year capital strategy, the four-

          4  year capital program and the annual statement of

          5  needs. Overseeing and coordinating environmental

          6  reviews under the City Environmental Quality Review,

          7  preparing zoning and planning reports at least once

          8  every four years which includes a review of the

          9  zoning resolution with any recommendations for

         10  changes and proposals for implementing planning

         11  policies. And approving or disapproving the

         12  acquisition by the City of office space. Can you

         13  raise your right hand to be sworn in, Ms. Gomez?

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Do you

         15  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you're about

         16  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         17  truth?

         18                 MS. GOMEZ: I do.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

         20  state your name for the record.

         21                 MS. GOMEZ: Lisa Gomez.

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you

         23  and the witness is sworn.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

         25  opening statement?
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          2                 MS. GOMEZ: I'd just like to say thank

          3  you very much to the Council for considering me as

          4  someone who's spent 20 years working in Housing and

          5  Development, particularly affordable housing. I

          6  welcome the opportunity to be able to help influence

          7  the fabric of the City where I live and that I love.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I just want to

          9  make an apology and a clarification. A lot of

         10  members are in other Committee meetings. We have a

         11  Health Committee, Finance Committee, Brooklyn

         12  Delegation is having a meeting. So people will be

         13  arriving in and out. Today is a crazy day. That

         14  leaves it to me to ask a couple questions. Council

         15  Member Provenzano has a question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I don't

         17  really have a question. So you can just proceed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, no, go ahead.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I really

         20  only had a comment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Go ahead.

         22  Comments are always first.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair. I was reviewing your responses, Lisa, to

         25  the questions that you were asked when you underwent
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          2  that very stringent process of arriving here today

          3  and we all know what a good job Stewart does. And as

          4  Chair of the Housing and Buildings Committee, I can

          5  relate to some of your comments and suggestions.

          6  Unfortunately, I think one of the things that

          7  happened when we sit here and interview folks to be

          8  on these commissions, we ask them what would you do

          9  to change this or change that and the reality is

         10  once they're sitting in that position, they can't

         11  really change much of anything. They're only there

         12  to vote or to judge or what have you. Again, in

         13  reading your comments and the direction you're

         14  coming from which is Housing, I'm just pleased to

         15  have you here today and to see you as member of that

         16  commission.

         17                 MS. GOMEZ: Thank you very much,

         18  Councilwoman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. Ms.

         20  Gomez, it was recently reported that the Real Estate

         21  Board of New York will sue the City if it begins

         22  calling for a mandatory number of affordable units

         23  as a condition of improving housing developments. A

         24  coalition called the Campaign for Inclusionary

         25  Zoning is trying to persuade the Planning Commission
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          2  and the City Council to adopt mandatory numbers

          3  instead of voluntary incentives that the City now

          4  offers to developers. The coalition has been calling

          5  for 40 percent of units to be affordable housing.

          6  Your answers to the questions, you talked about the

          7  need to implement policies to help increase the

          8  supply of housing while maintaining the context that

          9  makes our neighborhood special. Do you believe that

         10  having a mandatory number of units will yield more

         11  units than do voluntary incentives we have now for

         12  developers and do you think the mandatory numbers

         13  are a good idea?

         14                 MS. GOMEZ: I think we really have to

         15  look closely at both. I think we have look at on the

         16  voluntary side what's worked and why and on the

         17  mandatory side what's worked and why. I think we do

         18  need to recognize that New York City is a different

         19  environment than some other places that have

         20  mandatory and zoning is sort of one of the drivers

         21  of this. I think we need to look at a lot of other,

         22  both land use and other policy decisions including

         23  building codes, construction costs, things like

         24  that. I think that we need to look at the issue. I

         25  don't have a firm position on it. As somebody who
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          2  comes from a background of affordable housing, I

          3  think that more is better than fewer, but I think

          4  that we need to look at implementing policies that

          5  will actually generate more.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What do you

          7  consider affordable housing in the City cost wise?

          8  Let's start with condo co- op first which is primary

          9  what the Mayor -- as you know the Mayor's focus on

         10  65,000 units is not one- family homes or two- family

         11  homes --

         12                 MS. GOMEZ: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- It's primarily

         14  co- op condos or apartments. What do you think is an

         15  affordable housing?

         16                 MS. GOMEZ: I think there is a lot of

         17  levels of affordability. I think as somebody who

         18  came from HDC where the bulk of what we financed was

         19  actually low- income housing that is defined by the

         20  federal guidelines as housing affordable to people

         21  at or below 60 percent area median income which is

         22  currently about $36,000. I think that there is a

         23  place for housing that goes from that range and

         24  lower all the way up to middle- income. I think

         25  moderate income is an area that is important.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Have you

          3  had a chance to look at the Mayor's affordable

          4  housing plan?

          5                 MS. GOMEZ: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Has HDC been

          7  involved in financing any of those properties?

          8                 MS. GOMEZ: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Has those

         10  properties met the $36,000 minimum category?

         11                 MS. GOMEZ: Many have. I don't have

         12  the specific numbers at the top of my head.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you think it's

         14  possible to go below $36,000 to maintain an

         15  affordable housing quality?

         16                 MS. GOMEZ: It is possible. It just

         17  requires additional subsidy.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Your entire

         19  background has been in housing or economic

         20  development or real- estate, so clearly you bring a

         21  lot of experience in and also knowledge and

         22  resources to the City Planning Commission. Do you

         23  think that the issues coming before the City

         24  Planning Commission which is coming out quickly that

         25  West Side rezoning, the Nets area, the redevelopment
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          2  of waterfronts, those are all areas where we could

          3  utilize affordable housing. Do you think that in

          4  your role as a City Planning Commissioner, you'll be

          5  able to inject your desire to see better affordable

          6  housing projects?

          7                 MS. GOMEZ: I hope that I will. A lot

          8  of it depends on land cost and factors that are

          9  outside of the purview of the City Council. But it's

         10  certainly my desire.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You feel you'll

         12  be able to articulate them in a open way while you

         13  sit on the City Planning Commission?

         14                 MS. GOMEZ: Yes, I do. I believe that

         15  open communication is key.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Have you

         17  participated in any public discussions or debates

         18  regarding affordable housing? And what steps should

         19  be done to protect and preserve affordable housing?

         20                 MS. GOMEZ: I've sat on a number of

         21  panels that were sponsored by community council and

         22  other neighborhood civic organizations and have been

         23  a part of the dialogue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You're aware that

         25  a lot of our housing stock, Mitchell Lama housing is
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          2  going off market and working for HDC, have you been

          3  working to try to help some of those Mitchell Lama's

          4  stay?

          5                 MS. GOMEZ: I haven't worked on the

          6  Mitchell Lama; that was handled by another group.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. You hadn't?

          8                 MS. GOMEZ: Right, no.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. I'm just

         10  re- reading your questions here. Trying to stall for

         11  time so members can get here.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Mr. Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, Madeline.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I have

         15  another question if you want to take a breather.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Sure. Go

         17  ahead, Councilwoman Provenzano.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Since

         19  we're quite informal.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I

         22  understand that one of the major rezoning projects

         23  that you had some interest in was pinpoint and I was

         24  just wondering if you would want to comment on that.

         25  How you think it's going, the mix or affordable
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          2  housing?

          3                 MS. GOMEZ: Well, I haven't' really

          4  had any discussions most recently mainly because

          5  I've been out on maternity leave. It's a

          6  neighborhood that I've worked in previously and I

          7  know it's a very diverse neighborhood and one that

          8  could certainly use more affordable housing. I know

          9  that there are some developers who are interesting

         10  in providing it, but beyond that I don't really know

         11  a lot of the more current specifics.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Let's just do a

         14  housekeeping matter. Because your background and

         15  your experience and your relationships have clearly

         16  shown that you have the ability to serve as an

         17  effective and actually exceptional member of the

         18  City Planning Commission. I've gotten many phone

         19  calls lauding your abilities and praising your

         20  skills. I look forward to hearing great things about

         21  you in that role. There is just one housekeeping

         22  thing that I have to ask you. It's a long question.

         23  Please bear with me.

         24                 Ms. Gomez, I understand that you

         25  intend to continue your service with the Greenpoint

                                                            14

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  Manufacturing and Design Center as well as Habitat

          3  for Humanities Real- Estate Development and

          4  Construction Advisory Committee. If these entities

          5  have any dealings with the City Planning Commission

          6  and the Department of City Planning, will you recuse

          7  yourself?

          8                 MS. GOMEZ: Absolutely.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you understand

         10  that recusal at the Commission and at these entities

         11  means but it is not limited to not participating in

         12  discussions or receiving related documents

         13  concerning Commission matters; not attending

         14  meetings with City officials and others to discuss

         15  those matters and not being compensated in any way

         16  in connection with matters before the Commission?

         17                 MS. GOMEZ: I do understand.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I also want to

         19  applaud you, you're taking a major cut in salary to

         20  take this on and I just want to thank you for your

         21  commitment to City service and encourage you to

         22  continue with City Planning for as long as feasibly

         23  possible. I think that you're taking like a $100,000

         24  cut here. That's a pretty big bite. But to want to

         25  do this and to want to be part of City Planning is
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          2  noble. Anyone that wants to be involved in public

          3  service is noble. We've been joined by our Land Use

          4  Chair, Council Member Melinda Katz and I'll give her

          5  a minute to review. If she has a question, maybe we

          6  can come back. But I'd like to move on at this

          7  point, Ms. Gomez, to Ms. Heinze.

          8                 Before you are sworn in, Ms. Heinze,

          9  I'd like to give the Committee some background

         10  information pertaining to the Environmental Control

         11  Board. Within the Department of Environmental

         12  Protection, there is an Environmental Control Board

         13  that adjudicates notices of violation issued by

         14  various City agencies including the Departments of

         15  Environmental Protection, Police, Sanitation,

         16  Health, and Mental Hygiene, Fire and Buildings. The

         17  Board has the power to render decisions and orders

         18  to impose civil penalties under law provided for

         19  such violations. The Board considers matters

         20  relating to the cleanliness of City streets, the

         21  disposal of waste, the purity of the water supply,

         22  the regulation of street peddling and the City's

         23  response to emergencies caused by releases or

         24  threaten releases of hazardous substances. The Board

         25  may also adopt regulations pertaining to emissions
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          2  into the City air and into the waters.

          3                 The Board consist of the

          4  Commissioner's of the Departments of Environmental

          5  Protection, Sanitation, Health, Mental Hygiene,

          6  Buildings, Police, Fire, and Consumer Affairs, as

          7  well as six persons appointed by the Mayor with the

          8  advice and consent of the Council. The Commissioner

          9  of the Department of Environmental Protection serves

         10  as Chair. Members other than agency commissioners

         11  may not be employed by the City. Five of the six

         12  non- commissioner members must possess broad general

         13  background and experience on each of the following

         14  areas; air pollution control, water pollution

         15  control, noise pollution control, real- estate or

         16  the business community. The six non- commissioner

         17  represents the general public. Members other than

         18  agency commissioners are compensated and receive

         19  $150 per diam when performing the work of the Board.

         20  Member terms are four years. Can you raise your

         21  right hand to be sworn in, please?

         22                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Do you

         23  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you're about

         24  to give the Committee is the truth and the whole

         25  truth?

                                                            17

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 MS. HEINZE: I do.

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

          4  state your name for the record.

          5                 MS. HEINZE: Emily Heinze.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The witness

          7  is sworn.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Councilwoman Katz

          9  has to leave, she has a meeting. She'd like to vote

         10  for the record.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I do apologize

         12  for having to go. I have a 12:00 meeting with one of

         13  our colleagues, one of the few reasons I might not

         14  be here. But I do want to wish Ms. Gomez especially,

         15  both of you, but Ms. Gomez because I know we'll be

         16  working together in the future. I know your

         17  reputation. It's stellar. I do know that we're going

         18  to be working closely together. I look forward to

         19  it. We have a lot business to conduct here on Land

         20  Use in the City of New York. So congratulations to

         21  you. I vote aye on both.

         22                 MS. GOMEZ: Thank you, Councilwoman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: She will sign the

         24  reports later. We'll make sure the clerk chases her

         25  down. But you have her registered. Thank you. The
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          2  witness is sworn in. Do you have an opening

          3  statement, Ms. Heinze?

          4                 MS. HEINZE: I just want to thank you

          5  all for your time today and look forward to serving

          6  on the ECB and contributing what I can to the City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We've been joined

          8  by Council Member Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and we

          9  should have some more members shortly. Just a small

         10  bit of housekeeping on one of your answers to your

         11  questions. You had indicated that ECB sets the level

         12  or amount of fines for and the question is the ECB

         13  could use its authority to increase penalties for

         14  late payment and outstanding fees. Only the Council

         15  can increase penalties. Specifically, the ECB can do

         16  the sliding scale on the maximum or minimum amount

         17  of penalty for whatever the violation is in

         18  retrospect. So it's just something that I'm sure

         19  you'll find out quickly once you get on the Board.

         20  You also have very extensive background from your

         21  firm and I understand the person that you're

         22  replacing actually came from the same firm?

         23                 MS. HEINZE: Yes, he did.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: What's the name

         25  of that firm for the record?
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          2                 MS. HEINZE: Surrmae Associations

          3  (phonetic).

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: How were you

          5  approached to serve on ECB?

          6                 MS. HEINZE: I was actually nominated

          7  by the former member. He was previously in our New

          8  York office but moved to DC.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Just to get

         10  rid of housekeeping first. Ms. Heinze, your firm

         11  represents persons and/or entities before the ECB

         12  some of which have pending violation matters. To

         13  avoid any potential conflicts of interest, will you

         14  recuse yourself from handling any matters being

         15  handled by your firm involving clients that have ECB

         16  matters?

         17                 MS. HEINZE: Yes, I will.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you understand

         19  that recusal at ECB and at Surrmae means but is not

         20  limited too not participating in discussions or

         21  receiving relating documents concerning commission

         22  matters, not attending meetings with City officials

         23  and others to discuss those matters and not being

         24  compensated in any way in any connection with

         25  Surrmae's matters before the ECB?
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          2                 MS. HEINZE: I understand.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          4  Council Member Provenzano would like to make a

          5  comment.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Thank you.

          7  Ms. Heinze, I'd like to thank you for sitting there

          8  so patiently all morning wondering with us what was

          9  going on. I take it you're not related to Therese

         10  since you have that little e on the end of your

         11  name?

         12                 MS. HEINZE: No, I'm not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Your

         14  background having come from a noise background I

         15  see. Your answers to the questions all relate to

         16  that and actually make several pretty good

         17  suggestions. Unfortunately, as I said before, ECB is

         18  a judicial body and other than making judgments, I'm

         19  not so sure there is a whole lot else you could do.

         20  I was interested in one of your answers though. The

         21  question was, do you believe there is an alternative

         22  way other than through enforcement to ensure

         23  compliance with the City's noise code. Your answer

         24  was, compliance with the New York City Noise Code

         25  requirements could also be incorporated into the
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          2  building permit or certificate of occupancy process.

          3  I think that's a really good idea.

          4                 MS. HEINZE: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: I'm going

          6  to look into how we can do it. Having said that,

          7  good luck.

          8                 MS. HEINZE: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We have to go

         10  vote, Council Member Provenzano. So if Council

         11  Member --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Can we

         13  vote in here first?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You could vote in

         15  here.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: We don't have a

         17  quorum.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We don't have a

         19  quorum here officially. We can't announce a vote

         20  until we get a quorum. They need us in there for a

         21  quorum. You have a couple of questions while we go

         22  vote, right, Council Member Reyna. You can start

         23  with this one. Council Member Reyna is going to

         24  temporarily run the meeting while I go vote next

         25  door.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Good afternoon,

          3  Ms. Heinze. How are you?

          4                 MS. HEINZE: Good, thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Good morning,

          6  actually. I wanted to just take a moment to just ask

          7  in your experience having the expertise in

          8  noise/pollution, if you have any opinion through

          9  your profession to have given any thought to citing

         10  regulations when there is an environmental impact of

         11  a concentration of any one particular item such as

         12   -- I'll give you an example. My district has an

         13  industrial area park. The industrial area park is

         14  cited with M1, M3 zones, light and heavy industrial

         15  manufacturing. In many of the areas where perhaps an

         16  old building exists, it has been demolished and a

         17  cement mixing factory has now emerged. Throughout

         18  the last ten years I would say we've had three in

         19  the one mile radius constructed. Obviously, that's

         20  presents a problem. In addition to that, you start

         21  taking into consideration the garbage facilities in

         22  the area within a mile radius and we'll probably say

         23  that there's perhaps six land based facilities. So

         24  that now you have not just the cement mixing, but

         25  you have the garbage and you're increasing pollution
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          2  in the area.

          3                 It's evidence in the health

          4  conditions of our children. You have high asthma

          5  rates in our area. And I'm sure that these are

          6  contributing factors. I just want to hear your

          7  thoughts on that particular and I know I'm putting

          8  you on the spot. But perhaps there is something that

          9  can be highlighted through you that we may not have

         10  already thought about or perhaps you can take this

         11  as an agenda to be brought to the control board to

         12  deal with.

         13                 MS. HEINZE: It's a very complicated

         14  questions because with the addition of these

         15  different facilities, there are many factors that

         16  impact the environment. My area lies in noise

         17  control. So if we start to consider those factors,

         18  in terms of noise there are treatments that can be

         19  held to and the update of the noise code that is

         20  pending, it's very important. It outlines more

         21  clearly what needs to be done. In terms of noise can

         22  impact stress levels, sleep levels, education in

         23  very different ways. But if those factors were

         24  looked at and each one of those elements was

         25  required to comply with those, then in a sense you
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          2  wouldn't necessarily see them as multiple. But it

          3  would be all controlled as one because they have to

          4  meet a certain level. Those types of ideas could be

          5  applied to the other environmental impacts.

          6  Although, I don't have the background to comment on

          7  exactly how.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I appreciate

          9  your thought behind this. I just wish that within

         10  the Environmental Control Board, they would take

         11  consideration into the overall picture of the

         12  multitude of different entities contributing to one

         13  specific pollution factor; the aggregate as opposed

         14  to dividing things into categories. Because you

         15  divide it, of course, they are meeting the

         16  standards. But if you combine them, they exceed the

         17  standard. Therefore, creating a hazardous

         18  environment. I wanted to just share that with you

         19  and perhaps you could be the pioneer within the

         20  Control Board of addressing such an agenda.

         21                 MS. HEINZE: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Reyna. We've been joined by our

         24  majority leader, Joel Rivera from the Bronx. I want

         25  to just second her comments regarding Environmental
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          2  Control Board. We've been joined by Council Member

          3  Dennis Gallagher from Queens and David Weprin from

          4  Queens, as one meeting is ending I do want to second

          5  her comments regarding the Environmental Control

          6  Board's role in the development of waste transfer

          7  stations and monitoring of waste transfer stations.

          8  Clearly, we need a more active participation and for

          9  that matter and City Planning as well to try to make

         10  sure that the Solid Waste Management Plan is about

         11  to be reviewed by the Council. We would hope that we

         12  could get some incisive feedback from City Planning

         13  on how best we could plan for the future. Especially

         14  in a lighter fact that we are not recycling

         15  properly, we tend to have more refuse and every

         16  projection expects it will go up in the next 20

         17  years and not be less.

         18                 We've been joined by Council Member

         19  Lou Fidler, Council Member Yvette Clark, I thought I

         20  saw come in. And Council Member Simcha Felder.

         21  Council Member Felder has a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Ms. Gomez, hi.

         23  Will you buy Mr. Banks a cadillac?

         24                 MS. GOMEZ: Only if he behaves.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Okay, thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: As we now have a

          4  quorum, Majority Leader Rivera has a committee

          5  meeting that he stayed in federal regarding getting

          6  a full benefit for the fire fighter that perished in

          7  Iraq. He has to start that meeting. He'd like to

          8  vote now.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you very

         10  much Chairman Comrie. As the Chairman just stated, I

         11  do Chair another committee State and Federal

         12  Installation where we're going to be granting the

         13  opportunity for the family of the fire fighter that

         14  was unfortunately killed in Iraq to get the full

         15  benefits and pension that he would have as if he

         16  were working here in the City of New York. And we do

         17  have to get the meeting started promptly. I'm pretty

         18  sure that both you ladies will do a fine job in the

         19  different positions that you're being nominated for.

         20  I know that I briefed through your file here and

         21  seen that you're up to par and that being said, I

         22  will be more than happy to vote aye for the both of

         23  your nominations and look forward to your steadfast

         24  work for the City of New York. Thank you, Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. We're
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          2  prepared to vote now unless another member has a

          3  question. I'm going to defer, Ms. Heinze. What I'd

          4  like to encourage you also to think about is ECB is

          5  going to be doing a lot of work with street vendors

          6  and street peddlers. It's a major problem for this

          7  City. The rules and regulations are in the process

          8  of being bedded and rewritten and there is a tussle

          9  between the State and City even over jurisdictions

         10  and rules and regulations with vendors I hope that

         11  you will embrace that discussion and get involved in

         12  it as vehemently as possible. Clearly, there are a

         13  lot of issues around vendors. There are groups that

         14  are getting ready to sue the City regarding the fine

         15  increases and I'm sure a lot of that is going to

         16  come before ECB. But without further ado, we'll call

         17  the rest of the roll.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on both.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Provenzano

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reyna.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Baez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Weprin.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on both.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of nine in

          9  the affirmative, none in the negative, both matters

         10  are adopted. The reports will be circulated by the

         11  clerk.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Heinze and

         13  Ms. Gomez, thank you. Ms. Gomez, you're also taking

         14  a salary cut in order to serve because your firm is

         15  not going to allow you to get paid from any work

         16  that they do in ECB violations. I want to thank you

         17  as well for your decision to be in public service.

         18  And Ms. Gomez, thank you. Congratulations on John

         19  Banks, IV. May he always bring joy to you and your

         20  family.

         21                 MS. GOMEZ: Thank you very much.

         22                 MS. HEINZE: Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:: Mr. Chairman,

         24  I apologize for coming in late. Before you close the

         25  meeting, I have a question I want to ask on the
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          2  record. Not of these witnesses, on another matter.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I understand

          5  that Council received a certification from the Kings

          6  County Democratic Party regarding a nominee for

          7  reappointment as Commissioner of the Board of

          8  Elections. I want to be certain that we're on the

          9  record on this process by not acting today. That

         10  nominee is not approved and unless the Democratic

         11  caucus of the Council should take action in the next

         12  30 days, that nominee will be considered denied. Is

         13  that correct?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That's correct.

         15  This Council is not voting on that nominee. So

         16  according to my understanding of the rules, that

         17  nominee will be serving in a hold over capacity

         18  until Kings County Organization selects another

         19  individual to serve.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Unless the

         21  Democratic caucus of the Council takes action to

         22  approve that nominee within the next 30 days.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. Unless the

         24  Democratic caucus of the Council decides to make the

         25  request to have a meeting to approve the nominee,
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          2  that person will be considered a hold over.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: As Council to

          4  the Committee, can they give us the time frame for

          5  when that period expires? Does it begin to run

          6  today? Does it begin to run --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm told January

          8  10 is the expiration date for the 30 day process.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         12                 Then after that point, the party can

         13  submit another name after January 10. Or decide to

         14  submit no name, but then he would stay in a hold

         15  over capacity.

         16                 With that the meeting is adjourned. I

         17  want to thank Stewart Goldstein and Ed and Crystal

         18  and Chuck for their excellent work as usual, for

         19  everything that they're doing.

         20                 We have two more meetings before the

         21  end of the year. One more meeting. The clerk is

         22  going to be around later.

         23                 So again, Ms. Gomez and Ms. Heinze,

         24  thank you very much.

         25                 MS. GOMEZ: Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The record will

          3  be kept open for those members that are on their way

          4  here.

          5                 (Meeting adjourned at 12:20 p.m.)
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